MINUTES OF WORK SESSION
OF THE NEWPORT NEWS CITY COUNCIL
HELD IN THE 10" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2400 Washington Avenue
April 14, 2009
2:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Sharon P. Scott; Tina L. Vick; Joseph @itser; Dr. Patricia P. Woodbury;
Herbert H. Bateman, Jr.; Joe S. Frank; and Mad#ioilillan -------------------- 7

PN =S N S V1) —— S—

OTHERS PRESENT: Randy W. Hildebrandt; Stuart EizK&label Washington Jenkins; Alan
Archer; Neil Morgan; Cynthia Rolfe; Lottie Vincerjlen Jackson; Gregg Jones; Lisa Cipriano;
Rhonda Everton; Robin Rose; Monique Warren; Chatthatt; Steve Carpenter; LaVerne
Lovett; Florence Kingston; Al Riutort; Michael KingYvonne Manning; Gabe Morgan; John
Roberts; Izabella Cieszynski; Ashby Kilgore; EveretTeddy” Hicks; Michael W. Wagner;
Richard B. Donaldson; Chuck Hall; Arva Davidson;a8rCommer; Chuck Young; Patty
Gilbertson; Kenneth McGinnis; Karl Becker; Wendyrdta Sabine Hirschauer; Jennifer Walker;
Cleder Jones; Kim Lee; and Jerri Wilson

l. Newport News Public Schools Budget

City Manager Hildebrandt introduced Mr. Everete “Teddy” Hicks, Sr.,
Chairman, Newport News School Board.

Mr. Hicks thanked City Council for supporting Newpblews Public Schools.
He stated the FY2010 budget process was a challamdj¢he School Board was faced with the
task of focusing their resources on areas thatth@eheeds of students. He asked City Council
for their support of the recommended FY2010 Newpitvs Public Schools (NNPS) budget.
He introduced Dr. Ashby C. Kilgore, SuperintendediyPS, to provide a presentation on the
recommended FY2010 NNPS budget.

Dr. Kilgore stated since 2004 NNPS increasednilmaber of accredited schools
from 20 to 39 and the number of schools meetinggdee Yearly Progress (AYP) from 12 to
28. She reported in 2008, 17 schools were recedgnizy the State for exceeding minimum
standards. Dr. Kilgore stated NNPS continuedomu$ on improving student preparedness,
literacy, mathematics, teacher retention, dropouévention and recovery, and youth
development.

Dr. Kilgore reported revenue for the FY2010 Schoard budget totaled $299
million (State Funding - $179.8 million; City Fumgj - $113.3 million; Federal Funding - $4.5
million; and Other Revenue - $1.4 million), whictasva -5.5% reduction over FY2009. The
FY2010 School Board budget expenditure forecasisidied: 1) Personnel Services - $180.4



Page 2
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

million; 2) Fringe Benefits - $62.2 million; 3) Nediscretionary - $35.6 million; and 4)
Discretionary - $20.8 million. She asked City Cautw support level funding in the amount of
$113.3 million or $500,000 less than the FY2009p&eld budget. Dr. Kilgore stated the only
reduction that would be realized by NNPS was $1ianifrom the state. She stated the School
Board agreed they would not reduce employee salare health insurance premiums in
FY2010.

Superintendent Kilgore stated to absorb the $llfomreduction from the State,
NNPS had to make various changes to its staffipgrations and instruction. She reported
NNPS eliminated 120 positions, reduced Summer Sctwo@ 4-day week, and reduced its
extended day sites.

Superintendent Kilgore reported the American Recp and Reinvestment
Stimulus Act allocations to NNPS included funding fhe following: 1) Title | - $8.8 million; 2)
Special Education - $8.5 million; and 3) StabiliaatFunds - $11 million. She highlighted the
guidelines for the use of the stimulus funding tswee no fiscal shortfall beyond FY2012. (A
copy of the presentation, “Planning for a Sustam&oture for NNPS — Smart, Safe Schools,” is
attached and made a part of these minutes.)

Councilwoman McMillan stated she received a numndfecalls concerning the
issue of funding a legal representative for NNB&e inquired how NNPS justified $100,000 for
the personal preference of a legal representaitivéight of a $17 million reduction in State
funding. Mr. Hicks replied the level and accedgibiof legal services was important, which
NNPS needed on a daily basis. He stated the S&uaoll respected the City Attorney’s office,
but did not know of another person who had a grdatewledge of school law than the person
who currently represented the Schools. The lelvseéovice, knowledge and background that the
legal representative brought to the table was soper

Vice Mayor Whitaker inquired whether NNPS expeced a high dropout rate.
Dr. Kilgore replied 12% of NNPS students did noadpate; however, NNPS had implemented
new initiatives that were built around reducing tbeopout rate and increasing student
preparedness, i.e. the Freshman Transition Prodgrenkreshmen Year Program, and the Career
Pathways Program.

Councilwoman McMillan referenced a recent artiohethe Daily Press that
indicated 20% of students were homeless. She riedjiabout the amount of funding NNPS
spent on programs to support and identify homestsdents. Dr. Kilgore stated she would
provide definite figures to City Council; howeveNRS did receive federal funding to support
homeless students. A requirement of the Fedeoahdtess Act allowed students to continue
instruction at the school they attended prior t@wdoeing homeless, which allowed some
normalcy in their lives.



Page 3
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether NNPS use@mvopportunity to
expand its Special Education Program. Dr. Kilgogesponded that NNPS was using every
opportunity to expand its Special Education Progrand noted Federal stimulus funds,
earmarked for NNPS, would help in that process. BNWs researching an initiative to have
graduation coaches assigned to Special Educatiztests in their ninth year of school to gear
them towards a high school diploma rather than difieol diploma.

Councilwoman Woodbury understood homeless stsdestded some stability in
their lives, but felt NNPS went above and beyor8he recalled one case in which NNPS was
transporting a student to and from Williamsburgatitend school in Newport News. She
inquired when it became beyond appropriate or dasb support a homeless student and the
number of other communities who did the same. Gofeadent Kilgore replied the intent of the
law was that the family of the homeless studentartad decision on what they felt was best for
their child. NNPS was obligated to provide theessary assistance if a family felt it was best
for their child to stay in NNPS.

Mayor Frank inquired about the type of programei@&t to Special Education
students, after their graduation from high schoddr. Kilgore replied NNPS provided a
Transition Coordinator to Special Education stuséntbegin their transition from high school
into the workplace. NNPS also provided career thasestruction internships to Special
Education students, which allowed them the oppdstuto work in the community before
graduation from high school.

Mayor Frank inquired whether NNPS provided anydaHup programs to
Special Education students after graduation. Digake replied NNPS did not provide any
follow-up instruction to Special Education studeafter graduation.

Councilwoman Scott inquired about $150,000 that altadgted in the FY2010
budget for the salary of two Police Department Res® Officers for NNPS. She inquired
whether the officers were involved in special peogs.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired why Police Resouf@#icers received such a
high salary. City Manager Hildebrandt replied mBstice Resource Officers were veterans of
the Police Department whose salaries amounted te than $50,000 per year that could easily
increase to $75,000 with benefits.

Councilman Bateman inquired what NNPS did to hegmgates plan for their
financial futures. Dr. Kilgore replied NNPS implented a nine week financial literacy course
in each of the high schools, which would soon bezamequirement for graduation. NNPS also
implemented an eight-week after school program tratight in outside professionals who
focused on banking, mortgage information, etc.



Page 4
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury voiced concern, as a fornodio8| Board member,
about holding standards of what was expected friwdests. Recently, she learned that more
than one high school was using a system where eoconld make less than a grade of 60
whether they turned in assignments or not. Dr. dfdgreplied she was not aware of such a
policy in NNPS.

Councilwoman Woodbury recalled it was called tHesIstem, which never gave
students an “F” or “O” and was discussed at Merlehigh School. She inquired whether
such was happening at any NNPS and indicated itldvbe a detriment should such be
happening. Dr. Kilgore responded she was not awheeich a policy occurring at any NNPS.
She indicated she did not work at the level to kinmw individual teachers graded their classes.
However, the notion behind the “Incomplete Gradst&y” was everything was incomplete and
students never had a choice of not doing their wdgke stated NNPS wanted to be the best
school system and the only way to do that was bpusly with students and allowing them no
opportunity to fail.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether the grgdmnocedure was left up to
the teachers. Dr. Kilgore replied there was aakyl for each course which was developed by
teachers and supervisors. The syllabus was pebliahd went home to each family indicating a
grading system. She also noted the City-wide ggadcale.

Il. MGT Study of Future Incarceration Needs

City Manager Hildebrandt introduced Mr. Neil Marg Deputy City Manager, to
provide information about the Incarceration Neetigl$a

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about the costthe study. Mr. Morgan
replied the cost for the study totaled $114,000.

Councilwoman Woodbury recalled, in August 2008y Council agreed to a
moratorium on studies until the City’s fiscal stiioa improved and the financial crisis affecting
the country was over. Mr. Morgan reminded thaty@buncil directed the City Manager to
undertake a study of the City’s incarceration gys&t the December 11, 2007 Work Session of
City Council. The motivation behind the study wae tsuggestion that the consolidation of
operations of the City Farm and City Jail wouldesawney. Since the City was considering the
relocation of the City Farm facility, it was imparit to examine the future needs for prison beds,
and the mix of security levels as well as the ptaisadequacy of the City’'s facility. City
Manager Hildebrandt and Sheriff Morgan co-chaireccanmittee that selected MGT of
America, Inc., a national consulting firm, to undde a detailed study of future local
incarceration needs. He introduced Mr. Kenneth Mao@, Partner, MGT of America, Inc., to
present the findings of the study.



Page 5
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether any coesation had been given to
consolidate the Sheriff's Department and City Famto the Police Department. City Attorney
Stuart Katz replied the Sheriff was a Statewide Sfiutional Officer. Counties operated their
law enforcement under a Sheriff’'s Department; ttigynot have Police Departments.

Councilman Bateman recalled the intent of thed$twas not a subversive
undertaking to move the City Farm to develop thellaThe driving force behind the study was
to review alternatives to alleviate overcrowdingret jail.

Councilwoman McMillan stated the study resurfacednments made over the
past 20 years about moving and “dumping” the Cigynfrin Denbigh. Councilman Bateman
reiterated the intent of the study was not a sugiverand underhanded way to relocate the City
Farm.

Mr. McGinnis stated the study examined the mamydrs that played a role in the
growth of the Newport News jail population. Whj&l crowding presented a serious challenge
for the community, MGT found that the issue was ag@able if proactive steps were initiated.
He introduced Mr. Karl Becker, Partner, MGT of Ameet Inc., and Ms. Wendy Naro, Vice
President, JFA Institute, to offer highlights oétstudy.

Mr. Becker stated MGT concluded that a compreikengil crowding response
required: 1) capacity management initiatives; 23tige system process improvements; 3)
program alternative to incarceration; 4) informatimanagement; and 5) improved policy
coordination. He stated local justice system dtalders should begin development of a
program to have solutions in place as the jail patmn increased in the future.

Mr. Becker stated by having three jail facilitiasclose proximity (City Jail, City

Farm and the Hampton Roads Regional Jail [HRRJyypbrt News had a unique decentralized
approach to jail system management; however eadlityfdad issues. The City Jail was poorly
designed and presented serious security and dagetgs, particularly when overcrowded. The
City Farm experienced difficulty in maintaining agulation level that enabled it to perform
public works functions and experienced excess ¢gpadhe HRRJ provided valuable medical
services and had the potential to add significapacity for Newport News, but would require
additional double celling, or the displacementextdral inmates currently housed at the facility.
Mr. Becker thought it was interesting to see tiat jail system population grew by 32% from
2000 to 2007, while crime decreased.

Ms. Naro reported crime decreased from 2000 @72@hile Newport News’
incarceration rate had increased by 32%. Shedstageincarceration rate per 100,000 residents
had increased and Newport News had incarceratee pwople per capita over the last eight
years.



Page 6
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the studpk into consideration that
those being jailed where not necessarily resideintéewport News. Ms. Naro replied the study
did not take into consideration that all beinggdilwere not residents of Newport News.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether MGT hadrained the reason the

City Farm population had decreased. She felt i@ Jail inmates should be directed to the
City Farm and inquired why there was a decreagéenast four years. Mr. Gabriel Morgan,
Sheriff, City of Newport News, replied the jail pdption of non-Newport News citizens had
decreased and criteria was the reason that lesgésmvere sent to the City Farm. He stated the
Sheriff's office sent as many inmates as they caalthe City Farm. He reminded about the
special meeting that was convened between the Comeadth’s Attorney, Court Judges, and
others to discuss the criteria for sending inmatethe City Farm. Unfortunately, the criteria
could not be relaxed due to the location of thegg Edrm and its population density.

Councilwoman McMillan understood an inmate withiedony conviction could
not go to the City Farm. Sheriff Morgan respondkedt it depended on the type of felony
conviction. Many felons were sent to the City Fdaminfractions such as check forgery.

Mr. McGinnis stated the only way to increase tioenber of inmates sent to the
City Farm would be to change the criteria and whigt came a risk, given the facility’s location.
The facility was not located or designed to asstisks that the City was willing to take.

Councilwoman Woodbury did not understand the aeafor the decrease of
inmates sent to the City Farm over the past foarg/since the criteria had not changed. Mr.
McGinnis replied the pool of eligible offenders, avimet the City Farm criteria, had changed
because they were funneled out through service expénded diversion programs. Sheriff
Morgan replied the criteria had changed in 200t&rat City Farm inmate escaped from a work
crew and assaulted a former girlfriend.

Councilwoman McMillan recalled a jail audit hagem conducted by MGT,
which concluded that 260 inmates met the critasibea sent to the City Farm. Yet, when she
visited the City Farm in 2008, there were less th@d prisoners who were sent to the City Farm
from the Jail. She inquired what happened to tihero90 inmates who met the criteria. Mr.
McGinnis replied the 260 inmates met the basieidt however, the Sheriff was required to
consider other factors that weighed into whether ittmates could be transferred to the City
Farm and concluded that only 170 inmates met tiberiec. MGT did not review each prisoner’s
file to note prior convictions, which played a partwhether an inmate was transferred to the
City Farm.



Page 7
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether the decigio transfer an inmate to
the City Farm was made by the Sheriff alone or \wliead committee made the decision. Sheriff
Morgan replied he made the final decision on whetre inmate was sent to the City Farm;
however, a committee researched the inmate’s pigiory to determine whether they met the
criteria. City Farm administrators also had th¢harity to research an inmate’s history to
determine whether they met the criteria to be teansd to the City Farm. The first offense of
an inmate determined their eligibility to be traerséd to the City Farm. MGT was not able to
research the prior history of an inmate; they wery able to use an inmate’s last conviction.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the Shiedbuld overturn a Judge’s
decision to send an inmate to the City Farm. GAgnager Hildebrandt replied that Judges
rarely made direct sentences to the City Farm.erAttte inmate’s escape from the City Farm
work detail in 2003, the Judges concluded thatStheriff and his processes needed to determine
whether an inmate met the criteria for transfeth®s City Farm. Mr. John Roberts, Director, City
Farm, then looked at the information to see whetinenmate was a risk to the City Farm.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about the worleaske program for the City
Jail in light of the fact that the work release gnaim had been suspended at the City Farm.
Sheriff Morgan explained the work release program the City Jail included women and
diabetic men who were non-violent offenders andewet allowed to go to the City Farm.

Mayor Frank inquired whether MGT’s calculationserey based on total
population and/or pretrial inmates. Ms. Naro reglthe calculations were not based upon a
breakdown of the total population and/or pretrianates. Mr. McGinnis replied 60% of the
inmate population was not eligible to go to they@arm due to criteria.

Mayor Frank stated the State of Virginia had anah sentencing guidelines for
Judges to follow. He inquired whether MGT evaldatee State’s guidelines in connection with
who might be eligible for work release and transéethe City Farm. Mr. McGinnis replied that
MGT did not review the State’s sentencing guidajdGT used the City’s criteria to determine
whether an inmate was eligible to be transferrethécCity Farm.

Mr. Becker stated MGT concluded that managemétiteo City Farm under the
Sheriff's Department would result in a reductionagferating costs and would produce a net
savings of $433,224 per year for the City.

Councilwoman Scott inquired why the City Farmdpaore for food when they
housed fewer inmates who were able to cook for Hedves. Mr. Becker replied the City Jail
used a nationwide contractor to provide food, wiile City Farm had a small operation that
supported itself. It was due to economies of scale



Page 8
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Vice Mayor Whitaker recalled the City was at alvantage when City Farm
crews handled most of the grass cutting, which meag contracted out. He felt the criteria was
too stringent and indicated it did not make senskeep inmates from going to the City Farm.
Mr. McGinnis pointed out that the City inmate pdot less-secure offenders had decreased due
to other rehabilitative programs; it was not just triteria that reduced the inmate population at
the City Farm.

Vice Mayor Whitaker voiced concern that one negaincident at the City Farm
caused a public outcry, which in turn caused titerca to change.

Ms. Naro noted the Justice System processeslaieddo demographics, crime
rates, arrests and convictions. She indicatedf@kings were up 17% from 2000 through July
2008. Jail length of stay, per year, was relagiwgtable and averaged around 20 days per year at
the City Jail; however, inmate convictions for dny with a revoked or suspended license were
high compared to other jails throughout the Unigdtes. Those driving with a revoked or
suspended license were staying in jail four to fiags, which was longer than normal. These
were considered misdemeanors and were seen asditonvict type cases.

Mayor Frank noted the State Code required a numrof four days in jail after a
second conviction for those convicted of drivingttwa suspended or revoked license. He
inquired whether MGT had studied that data. MsoNeplied MGT did not study that data.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether MGT wakedb look at the lag-time
between when inmates could actually appear in adtet being convicted of a crime. Ms. Naro
replied they were not able to look at the lag-tim#n the City’s existing data.

Councilwoman McMillan understood there were maasiables that MGT could
not determine; however, their recommendations wesed on information without noting
variables. Ms. Naro replied there were other \des that could have been studied if the data
had been available.

Mayor Frank inquired how MGT evaluated the datatbhe impact of their
recommendations, given the limited amount of datdlable to MGT at the time of their study.
Ms. Naro replied MGT would be able to evaluaterthecommendations in more detail once the
City Jail implemented its new records managemestesy in July 2009.

Councilman Bateman inquired about the type obrmfiation that would be
available in the new records management systerty MGinager Hildebrandt replied the system
would provide an inmate’s background history anfdrimation needed to analyze operations.
The City was spending approximately $5 million forecords management system that would be
used by the Police and Sheriff's Departments.



Page 9
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Ms. Naro stated the Justice System process issaesurfaced from all of the

above included: 1) Pretrial detainees accounte®3d¥ of the jail population; 2) Just over 40%
of the pretrial detainees had not had a bond $&j\&n the offense demographics of the pretrial
offenders, the fact that bond had not been setampgevery high in comparison to other
jurisdictions and indicated that the bonding arldage practices of Newport News tended to be
very conservative, which may result in over-releran incarceration for low-level offenders
who did not represent a threat to public safetyGTVconcluded that Newport News would run
out of beds by mid-2012.

Mr. Becker noted the key recommendations of MG)TEstablish an operational
capacity of 620 inmates for the Newport City Ja)IReplace and relocate the current City Farm
program, adding minimum security beds; 3) Constdidéhe City Farm operation and
administrative structure under the Sheriff’'s Depemt; 4) Increase the population housed at the
Farm in order to alleviate crowding at the Jail;G)ntinue use of the 286 beds at the HRRJ
allocated to Newport News; 6) Convene a work gréustudy and make recommendations
regarding low-level offenders currently admitted aatained in the jail system; 7) Establish and
fund the creation of a research position that pegpand analyzed consolidated criminal justice
data for the Newport News criminal justice syst@&ngEstablish a system-wide goal among all
justice system stakeholders, of reducing the aeelegth of stay in the City Jail by at least two
days; 9) Review the bonding practices within thetesy to ensure that those who could be safely
released from the jail were granted a reasonabled lmount; and 10) Initiate long-term
planning to accommodate the projected growth in d@ffender population, examining the
development of new or replacement facilities, usd®RJ, and/or implementation of strategies
that would reduce admissions to the Jail or theramgee length of stay. (A copy of the
presentation, “Study of Long-Term Corrections Orgational & Facility Needs for Newport
News, Final Report: April 14, 2009,” was attached anade a part of these minutes.)

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether options stethto decrease an inmate’s
length of stay when the Sheriff met with the Commiealth’s Attorney and the Judges. Sheriff
Morgan replied the meeting with the Commonwealttorney and Judges was only to inquire
whether the criteria could be changed so that nmoreates could be transported to the City
Farm; however, he did provide a briefing to then@nial Justice Services Community where the
discussion about the length of stay for pre-tréiéreders did surface. Discussion between the
Judges, and the Magistrate concluded that effi@snuoe cleared up before moving forward with
any of the recommendations made by MGT.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether another nmgetould be held between the
same players to see whether the criteria coulcheaged to allow more pretrial individuals to be
transported to the City Farm. Sheriff Morgan reglthat could be considered.



Page 10
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury understood MGT to mean thatstudy would have
been more complete if the City had waited until tkeords management system had been
installed.

Councilwoman McMillan asked the City Manager tate&za memo to the Director
of the City Farm assuring his employees that MGStigdy was just a report and was not an
action item at this time. She indicated that stéifthe City Farm had apparently been told by a
number of members of the Sheriff Department thatSheriff’'s Department was taking over the
City Farm. She stated that was a decision by Cayncil and felt that City Farm personnel did
not need to be worried about losing their jobs.

City Manager Hildebrandt stated he needed to redeput from City Council

about what steps to take with reference to the lositn of the study. He stated the study
clearly indicated that some savings would be acdishmgd by consolidating the City Farm and
the Sheriff's Department into a single administrati If the position of City Council was that
they were not concerned about the savings, themettemmendation would be taken off the
table; however, the City needed to create a proshsse all the criminal justice people reviewed
the issues of who was being held, how long theyevbeting held and the alternatives that would
reduce the number of people that stayed in anyefthree facilities to avoid the necessity to
build a new facility by 2012. The Judges, Commoaltie Attorney’s Office and Magistrate
were willing to review this data to decide whetki@ngs could be done to reduce the length of
days an inmate resided in the jail, and reducentimeber of inmates to alleviate the need to build
another facility.

Councilwoman McMillan stated, not agreeing to saidate services did not
mean City Council was not concerned about coske s&ated the question was whether it was in
the best interest of the City to consolidate thiy ail and City Farm, with which she disagreed.
She felt there were certain discrepancies and pgrwes that needed to be corrected and put in
place. She agreed with the suggestion to spedktivt Judges, the Commonwealth Attorney
and the Magistrate to inquire whether the critenald be changed. She was not predisposed to
make a decision now, or in the immediate futureyualthe consolidation of the City Jail and
City Farm. She felt there were other matters tes@er and stated $400,000 was not going to
make or break the City.

City Manager Hildebrandt suggested that stafeaesh the information in the
study to: 1) determine what it would take to accbsmpthe consolidation; 2) verify the
information about what decisions to eliminate; 8jeimine the aspects of the decisions; and 4)
determine the efficiencies gained by having onesgeoperate the City Farm and City Jail. It
was not his decision to say that everything thatfM&ommended would be implemented; time
needed to be spent with the Sheriff and City Farnvdrk out details.



Page 11
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman McMillan stated she had been prepiecliwith the budget and
was not about to make any type of recommendatieedapon a half-hour presentation. City
Manager Hildebrandt was not asking that City Columeike a recommendation at this time. He
was only asking if there was any interest for stafftudy the issue in more detail.

Mayor Frank asked the City Manager to meet witie tJudges, the
Commonwealth’s Attorney, the City Magistrate, thali€e and Sheriff Departments, and the
City Farm, concerning the criteria and the studye felt it would take six to nine months to
study the true count of offenders to know the caieg of inmates. This would determine how
many beds were needed and what would be the naittihe new facility. Once this information
was received, then City Council could determineribgt steps. He asked the City Manager to
include the information that would be provided bg hew records management system. City
Manager Hildebrandt replied it would take six to@imonths to compose the information,
depending upon the new records management system.

Councilwoman Scott reaffirmed that the informatia the current report would
be used and no additional money would be spenty Manager Hildebrandt reaffirmed that it
would not cost additional money. The informationcbnsolidate the operations of the City Jail
and City Farm would be studied by staff who workethe various institutions.

Councilwoman Scott stated much of the informatiothe report had confirmed
what Sheriff Morgan had been saying to City Counegir the past three years. She hoped the
City would not pay to get the same information agai

There was consensus among City Council to hav€ity Manager meet with the
major stakeholders of the justice system to devalpfan for City Council to consider regarding
consolidation of the City Jail and City Farm.

Sheriff Morgan stated he objected to CouncilwomdoMillan’s statement
regarding members of his staff conveying to stafiwbers of the City Farm that the Sheriff's
Department was taking over their operation.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether Sheriff Mang was calling her a liar.
Sheriff Morgan replied he was not calling Councilman McMillan a liar; however, if someone
in his office made such a statement it was notdaseany information they had received. He
reiterated his objection to Councilwoman McMillancemment. Councilwoman McMillan
replied Sheriff Morgan did not know who she hadkgowith and who she had not spoken with,
and therefore, he was being presumptuous.

Miscellaneous Item
City Manager Hildebrandt announced that Standard Poors confirmed the

City’s AA rating and indicated a letter would beatfcoming to the members of City Council
confirming the same. This announcement would adssCity in it upcoming bond sale.



Page 12
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

[l Fire Department Budget Presentation

City Manager Hildebrandt introduced W. Scott EyliDeputy Chief, Operations,
Fire Department, to provide the presentation.

Chief Fuller reported the merger of the Fire Dapant and the Office of
Emergency Management was approved by the City Maneg2008. He stated the merger
provided an operational model that was consistetit @ther regional localities. The combined
FY2010 budget of the two merged operations tot&idd,210,473 and included: 1) Personal
Services/Fringe Benefits — 92%; 2) Contractualfimaé— 5.3%; 3) Materials/Supplies — 3.0%;
and 4) Discretionary - 1%.

Chief Fuller stated the Fire Department secunest 3.7 million in Federal and
State grant funding since 2005. He reported tlaatgiunding was used for radios, fithess and
exhaust equipment, training, etc. The grants requd% to 50% of cost sharing.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether transptida grant funding was
available to the Fire Department for interstatdsctiey were required to make. Chief Fuller
replied transportation grant funding was competimnd usually went to large organizations.

Chief Fuller reported the impact of FY2010 budgets the elimination of five
positions with a total budget reduction that exeee$998,000, based on attrition credits and
other reductions. He stated reorganization of Bepartment would have minimal impact on
core service levels to citizens; however it woulitet longer to do research. (A copy of the
presentation, “Newport News Fire Department,” ta@ted and made a part of these minutes.)

Mayor Frank inquired about the true impact to @igy regarding a paragraph in
the City's Manager's FY2010 budget position papdat indicated the Fire Department had
been unable to expand in areas that were criticatidy-to-day operations. Chief Fuller
responded that the paragraph had to do with St#tldnin leveraging the opportunity to partner
with the airport to provide services to the Coldhiges area.

Mayor Frank inquired whether any decisions had bmeade, in accordance with
the budget, which would impact the Fire Departneeaiccreditation. Chief Fuller replied any
decisions made should not impact the Fire Depaisresstreditation.

Mayor Frank inquired about a paragraph in they ®anager's FY2010 budget
position papers noting the Fire Department woultb@able to meet the City’s response plan
with regard to emergencies. City Manager Hildettaxplained that current staffing levels, for
emergency response, were being met; however, infuhee as calls increased, the Fire
Department would have to add additional staff.



Page 13
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Mayor Frank understood the Fire Department wais going to experience a
decrease in response time or suppression of semiben there was a fire. Chief Fuller replied
the Fire Department did not anticipate a decreasedponse time or suppression of services in
FY2010, due to budget reductions.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the Fire Departmigaad or anticipated receiving
stimulus funding from the federal government. Chigller replied the State had received public
safety funding and the Fire Department requestedifig for Fire Station construction in the
City’s legislative package. Mr. Fuller noted a@®et package of $210 million for Fire Station
Construction through the United States Fire Adntiatton. The Fire Department would apply
for both sets of funding in hopes of receiving eith

Councilman Bateman inquired whether incentive pag related to employees
obtaining certificates and inquired about the dédfece in Contractual Services over FY2009.
Chief Fuller stated the Fire Department saw CotuedcServices remaining stable for FY2010
over FY2009. The incentive pay included a $4,0Q@ptement that was paid to paramedics on a
yearly basis in recognition of the additional howgent obtaining and maintaining their
certification through national registers. The FiDdepartment also paid a supplement to
Technical Rescue Specialists, members of the Dea@m[ members of the Maritime Instant
Response Team, and members of the Hazardous MstBesponse Team, in recognition of
their additional training and services they prodidee City.

Councilman Bateman inquired of services that weretracted out by the Fire
Department. Chief Fuller replied the Fire Departtneontracted out services for ladder testing,
ambulance stretcher maintenance, EMS building sesyimedical gas supplies, etc.

Vice Mayor Whitaker inquired whether Newport Newasd Hampton Fire
Departments worked together. Chief Fuller rephsivport News had always worked with the
City of Hampton and other surrounding localitiddewport News had a Mutual Aid Agreement
with all surrounding localities, Cities on the Smitle, and military bases throughout the region.

V. Police Department Budget Presentation

City Manager Hildebrandt introduced Mr. James FEax, Chief of Police,
Newport News Police Department, to provide the gméstion.

Chief Fox announced the Police Department appadt and arrested a robbery
suspect on the evening of April 13, 2009, in Yorku@ty after a long string of robberies
throughout the Peninsula at convenience stores ffebruary — April 2009. He stated Police
Officers and roving patrols were strategically kechthroughout the Peninsula in order to



Page 14
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

apprehend the suspect. Digital cameras also playethjor part in the apprehension of the
suspect.

Chief Fox reported the FY2010 Police Departmermtget was cut by $2.1 million
in FY2009 -2010 and continued the Police Departiedotus on fighting crime. He stated the
strategies the Police Department would ensue f&029 were: 1) Crime Prevention Efforts; 2)
Community Partnerships; 3) Aggressive Enforcemed#); Community Clean-Ups; 5)
Comprehensive Juvenile Crime Efforts; 6) Utilizatimf Technology; 7) Intelligence on
Criminal Networks; and 8) Continued OrganizatioRalview. The proposed FY2010 budget
included: 1) Freezing twelve sworn positions; 2}tdg three civilian positions; and 3) Funds
for Youth Violence Task Force, travel/training, adising and recruiting expenses. (A copy of
the presentation, “Newport News Police Departmedames D. Fox, Chief of Police, 2009,” is
attached and made a part of these minutes.)

Councilwoman McMillan inquired why more experiedaofficers were appointed
as School Resource Officers. She noted the budigeteunt for the two Resource Officers was
$150,000 and indicated that amounted to a salaiwvef $50,000 for each officer. Chief Fox
replied young police officers preferred to worktbe street, while older officers, as they neared
retirement, chose School assignments.

Mayor Frank inquired whether any proposed budgdtictions would negatively
impact the Police Department’s accreditation. C€Cltiex replied the Police Department the
budget reductions would not negatively impact tinaitional accreditation.

Mayor Frank inquired what would be the Police &®ment’s back-up plan if no
Federal stimulus funding was received for additigmalice officers. Chief Fox replied the
Police Department’s back-up plan would be to maintarrent services.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the Police Departtmesponded to citizen calls
by phone. Police Chief Fox replied the Police Dapant was not taking away services, but was
responding to the public in alternative ways. Fostance, reports required by insurance
companies could be taken over the phone or on #ie Wolice officers would respond in person
if the citizen requested. Most citizens prefertied convenience of handling reports over the
phone or one the web.

V. Community Services Board — Funding for RegioDasis

City Manager Hildebrandt introduced Mr. Chuck IHdExecutive Director,
Hampton/Newport News Community Services Board ravide the presentation.

Mr. Hall stated Hampton/Newport News Communitgngces Board (CSB)
provided the following services: 1) Prevention &adly Intervention Services; 2) Case



Page 15
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Management and Mental Health Support Services; BergGency Services; 4) Outpatient
Services; 5) Day Treatment and Support ServicesRé&3idential Treatment and Support
Services; 7) Crisis Stabilization and Urgent Cargj 8) Inpatient Purchase of Service.

Mr. Hall reported the CSB served 10,873 consurnmefsY2008 (5,480 residents
of Newport News, 4,502 residents of Hampton, and 88sidents from other surrounding
localities). Fiscal Year 2008 revenues totaled,$51,766. Of the total revenue, 53% was
provided by fees, 33% was provided from the St6%,was provided from local government,
5% was provided from the federal government andaz¥% provided from Other sources.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the contriiom of Newport News,
Hampton and other surrounding localities equaledcthsts of providing services to the clients of
the CSB. Mr. Hall replied the cost of providing\gees was not equal among the jurisdictions,
which was one of the constraints felt by the CSB.

Mr. Hall asked City Council to support the follmg CSB programs: 1) Jall
Diversion for Newport News City Jail - $55,510;X¢wport News Adult Drug Treatment Court
- $32,185 to $65,000; and 3) Therapeutic Day TreatnServices - $51,800. (A copy of the
presentation, Hampton-Newport News CSB,” is attddred made a part of these minutes.

Mr. Hall pointed out that local support had diyed over time. Support from
Newport News was less than support from Hamptohe difference was $323,951. He asked
City Council to address the difference over tinkée asked City Council to support: 1) A motion
approving local tax support from each locality lshepon a formula that required an equivalent
per capita allocation; 2) A strategy for implemeioia involving increased support to the CSB
over five (5) years; and 3) Approximate annual amiei$107,310.

Mayor Frank inquired whether the CSB providedhsraonal services for Special
Education students after graduating from high sthddr. Hall replied the CSB did provide
transitional services to Special Education studaftes they graduated from high school.

Mayor Frank inquired about the budget reductiorale by the CSB to balance
their FY2010 budget. Mr. Hall replied the CSB didt implement a hiring freeze because so
much of their revenue was earned by their staf6BGtaff members raised more revenue than
the salaries they made. There would be no incrieasempensation for employees in FY2010.
Mr. Hall promised not to come before City Coungil July 2010 to ask for an additional
$300,000 to fund the CSB’s retirement system. TB8 @/as constraining its health care costs
by increasing premiums and reducing benefits wbdetinuing to provide superior coverage.
Case Managers transferred clients in their ownaole$j which was a cost savings to the CSB as
well.



Page 16
Minutes of Work Session
April 14, 2009

Councilwoman Vick inquired whether Mr. Hall wasjuesting additional funding
from Newport News because the CSB was providingensarvices to Newport News than to
Hampton, but Hampton was providing more fundingr. Mall replied the increased funding
would benefit the residents of Newport News andesiop outcomes would be realized from the
Therapeutic Day Treatment and Jail Diversion progra

Councilman Bateman indicated rumors were surtpthiat the Riverside Trauma
Unit was closing. He inquired how the closure lté Riverside Trauma Unit would affect the
CSB. Mr. Hall replied closure of the Riverside Egency Trauma Unit would not directly
affect the CSB.

Councilwoman Vick inquired whether the City Manageuld find money,
through City department savings, to provide addalofunding to the CSB. City Manager
Hildebrandt replied he would see if $107,000 cdwddfound, but noted every City department’s
budget had significantly been cut. He stated ptesheled on the decisions made by City Council.

Mayor Frank suggested that City Council schedu®pecial Work Session for
Tuesday, April 21, 2009, between 1:00 p.m. and 3i00., to provide recommendations and
comments to the City Manager on the FY2010 Opeaya@indget.

There was consensus among City Council to sched8jeecial Work Session on
April 21, 2009, between 1:00 p.m. and 3:00 p.m.

City Manager Hildebrandt stated he would schedute for discussion on the
Pension Fund at the April 28, 2009 Work Sessio@itf Council.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS,
ON MOTION, COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 6:35 P.M.

Jennifer D. Walker, CMC Joe S. Frank
Chief Deputy City Clerk Mayor
Presiding Officer

A true copy, teste:

City Clerk



